
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JULY 6, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

     INVOCATION /  Pastor Joshua Sellers of Eastern Shore Baptist Church 

  

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / June 15, 2015  

               

PUBLIC HEARINGS:           Pulled from the agenda per owner  

 

1.)   Rezoning:   Cadence Bank 

  Location:   One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Rd. 

  Present Zoning:  R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

  Requested Zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development 

  Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

2.)  Pre-Zoning:  Cadence Bank 

 Location:   One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Rd. 

 Present Zoning:  RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15 

 Requested Zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of Daphne 

 Recommendation:   Unanimous favorable 

 

3.)  Annexation:  Cadence Bank 

 Location:   One quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Rd. 

 Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

                                                      

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry     

Review Special Called meeting minutes / June 25
th
  

1.  Ordinances: 

a.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Amending the City of Daphne Pay Plan / Ordinance 2015-36 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

Review minutes / June 1
st
  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

Review minutes / June 15
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

Review minutes / June 15
th
  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

 

 

 

1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               JULY 6, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 
5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

Review minutes / June 24
th
  

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

Review minutes / June 22
nd

  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

Review minutes / May 28
th
  /  Staff  Report / June 25

th
 meeting 

 

MOTION:  To set  a Public Hearing date for August 3, 2015 and approve advertising to consider : 

             a.)   Pre-zone:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                    Located:        Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

                    Present zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

                    Requested zoning:  PUD, Planned Unit Development, City of Daphne 

                    Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

            b.)   Annexation:   The Bills’ No. 2, LLC 

                   Location:    Southwest corner of the intersection of Champions Way and AL Hwy. 181 

           Recommendation:      Unanimous favorable 

 

 

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

Review minutes / May 13
th
 / June 10

th
  

                  

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

Review minutes /  May 22
nd

  

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

    

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

      

                                         
10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 

 

 

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

 

2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               JULY 6, 2015                                            PAGE   3 
 

        RESOLUTIONS: 
 

a.)  Resolution 2015-43. . . . . . . . . . . . Requesting the Eastern Shore Metropolitan Planning Organization 

                                                  Fund a Project to Construct a Transit Facility in Daphne for Which 

                                                  The City of Daphne Will Provide the 20% Match 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-44. . . . . . . . . . . . Acceptance of Streets and/or Rights-of-Way / A Portion of Ray’s  

                                                                Lane Southwest of Bradbury Circle – South of Lake Forest   

                                                                Subdivision 
 

    

       ORDINANCES:  
 

        2
nd

  READ    
a.)  Ordinance 2015-33. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds / Daphne Master Planning &  

                                                                   Pre-Design  

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-34. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Setting Forth the Authorization of Certain City Officials  

                                                                                as Designated Signatories on Various Accounts of the  

              City of Daphne 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-35. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds / Property Purchase / Lake Forest  

                                                                               Lot 62-Sub Unit 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Ordinance 2015-36. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Amending the City of Daphne Pay  

                                                                               Scale 

 

b.)   Ordinance 2015-37. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Rezone:  Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the  

                                                                               Intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road / Cadence  

                                                                               Bank / Pulled from the agenda per owner 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-38. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pre-Zone Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the  

                                                                               Intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road / Cadence  

                                                                               Bank / Pulled from the agenda per owner 

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-39. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Annexation: Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the  

                                                                               Intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road / Cadence  

                                                                               Bank / Pulled from the agenda per owner 

 

      
  

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



JUNE 15, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                       

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood;  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk;  Kevin Boucher, Adams 

& Reese; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director;  Margaret Thigpen, Civic 

Center Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance Director/Treasurer; Tonja Young, Library Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs ManagerDorothy Morrison, DRA and Beautification Committee; 

Willie Robison, BZA;  Larry Cooke, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Sarah Toulson, Beautification 

Committee. 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Richard Merchant, Building Official. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Dale Ryles with City of Hope Church gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

June 1, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the June 1, 2015 minutes were approved as written.  

 

June 8, 2015 Council Work Session Minutes 

There being no corrections the June 8, 2015 Council Work Session minutes were approved as written.  

 

PRESENTATION:  Beautification 3rd Quarter Award / Coastal Bank and Trust of Alabama / Kelly Lankford,               

                                   Branch Manager  

 

There was no representative present to accept the award. 

 

 Jubilee Square Property Manager, Christy Howard / Burton Property Group 

 

There was no representative present to accept the award. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The June 8
th
 minutes are in the packet.   

 

Treasurer’s Report / May 2015 
 

As of May, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,840,698 and Total City Funds - $19,261,986. 

 

5



JUNE 15, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 
Sales & Use Tax Collections / April 2015 
$1,144,698 was collected for April, 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget – ($36,037)  -.5% 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   +  3.1 %  

 
Lodging Tax Collections / April 2015 

$101,196 which is up $14,951  from April’s 2014’s collections of $86,245       .  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $47,464;   +   4.4% 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  + 14.8% 

 

Set a Special Called Finance Committee Meeting  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to call a special Finance Committee meeting to discuss the pay scale for 

Directors.   Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The next meeting will be the 1
st
 Monday of July. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The committee met earlier today, and the Police Department has been presented a grant opportunity from the 

Department of Justice that will pay 75% for two new officers for three years, and the city will be required to continue 

those two positions for another two years after the three years runs out.  They just found out about it today.  Council 

will need to suspend the rules on a motion to approve applying for this grant. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to suspend the rules to consider a motion to approve the Police Department 

applying for the grant by the Department of Justice.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Lake   Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Fry   Aye    Davis   Aye 

Scott   Aye    Conaway  Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to approve the Police Department applying for the grant by the Department of 

Justice.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Councilman Fry said they are continuing research on body cameras, and are looking for grant opportunities. 

 

 

6



JUNE 15, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The committee met this afternoon and discussed the advertisements that are thrown into citizen’s yards.  There were 

representatives from the Press-Register in attendance and they were able to work out an agreement where they will do 

a sweep every week on Friday and retrieve the papers that have not been picked up by citizens. The Press-Register 

wants to work with the city, and the committee will be monitoring how it works.  The next meeting will be the third 

Monday of July after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

No report. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be July 2
nd

 with one item on the agenda.  The minutes for the January 8
th
 meeting are in the 

packet along with the staff report for the June 4
th
 meeting. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting is June 24
th
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

 The next meeting will be June 29
th
 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The Library has DVD’s available – movies, cultural, history, etc. that citizens can check out. The Summer Reading 

Program went well.  The next meeting will be July 9
th
 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Planning Commission will meet on June 25
th
 at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

                 

   F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The board at its last meeting has recommended installing Frisbee Golf at the new park in Lake Forest.  This will go to 

the Finance Committee to approve funds from the portion of the lodging tax apportioned to recreation. 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be June 24
th
 at 5:00 p.m.   

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood reported that the mowing and bush hogging at the Lake Forest park has been complete.  The Utility 

Board is moving forward with their bond issue which will have very limited impact to the city.  He mentioned that a 

representative for Burton Property Group was now present and asked if they could present the Beautification Award to 

them at this time.   

 

Council President Conaway said that will be fine. 

 

PRESENTATION:  3
rd

 Quarter Beautification Award / Jubilee Square Shopping Center / Burton Property Group 

 

Mayor Haygood, Councilman Scott and Mrs. Sarah Toulson, Beautification Committee) presented the award to Philip 

Burton. 

7



JUNE 15, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

No report. 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported Wet & Wild Wednesday will be next two Wednesdays.  He gave 

the sports schedule. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – announced that The Taste of the Eastern Shore will be August 20
th
.   

 

Adrienne Jones - Planning Director – reported the ice machine is now in compliance.  

 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  
a.)  Events Permit / Free (Forever Receiving Equality Everywhere) /  Walk  /  November 21, 2015 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Events Permit / Free (Forever Receiving Equality Everywhere) /  

Walk  /  November 21, 2015.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Mrs. Hayes introduced the new Assistant City Clerk, Melissa Wilt to everyone. 

 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Don Ouellette – Daphne -  spoke regarding the advertisements thrown in yards, and is not in favor of them. He 

also spoke regarding the power outage, and the need to have someone in place for citizens to call for information. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-42. . . . . . . . . . . .Confiscated Funds Signatories  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-42. Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-42. Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

8



JUNE 15, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

          1
ST

 READ    

a.)  Ordinance 2015-33. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds / Daphne Master Planning &  

                                                                   Pre-Design  

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-34. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Setting Forth the Authorization of Certain City Officials  

                                                                                as Designated Signatories on Various Accounts of the  

       City of Daphne 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-35. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds / Property Purchase / Lake Forest  

                                                                               Lot 62-Sub Unit 

 

ORDINANCES 2015-33, 2015-34 AND 2015-35 ARE 1
ST

 READ 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Fry welcomed Melissa, and said he will enjoy working with her. He appreciated all the flags throughout 

the city. 

 

Councilman Scott said that they need to sit down with Riviera and work out something after the bad situation with the 

power outage Saturday, and with the outage of the Police Department generator.  They could not receive calls for four 

hours.  The Police Department did a good job handling the outage.  The Mayor will address this and come back with 

protocol.    

 

Councilman LeJeune – wished all the fathers happy Father’s Day, and wished everyone a safe Fourth of July, and 

encouraged all to come out for the fireworks Display.  

 

Councilman Davis welcomed Melissa on board, and he is glad to see Sarah out as a citizen with the Beautification 

Committee.  He wished everyone a good and safe holiday. 

 

Councilman Lake spoke regarding the gazebo that was budgeted for Park City Park.  He said that the Beautification 

Committee gave the Mayor a plan, and does not see why the project has not been completed.  He hopes there will be a 

better understanding with Riviera, and he would like a way developed  to get messages out to the public when things of 

this nature happens. 

 

Mayor Haygood commented on the budget for parks saying that he has Volkert looking at the gazebo project, and he 

wants it done right and keep symmetry throughout the city parks.  He mentioned that Joe Bullock passed away today, 

and that he was a good man, and will be dearly missed. 

 

Council President Conaway welcomed Melissa, and wished everyone a happy Fourth of July. 

 

 

 

9



JUNE 15, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:10 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk      Council President 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



CITY OF DAPHNE 

SPECIAL FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
JUNE 25, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:14p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. Conaway, 
Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman Robin LeJeune, Councilman Ron Scott , Councilman John Lake, Mayor 
Dane Haygood, Finance Director Kelli Kichler, Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, and Senior Accountant 
Suzânne Henson.  Mr. Davis was absent. 
                  
Also in attendance were, City Clerk Rebecca Hayes, Community Development Director Adrienne Jones, Police 
Chief David Carpenter, Library Director Tonja Young, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Benefits 
Coordinator Sherree Hilburn, Battalion Chief Joey Holasz, CD Administrative Assistant Pat Johnson, Civic 
Center employees: John Williams, Coley White, Bill  Stroh, SAIL Site Assistant Arnetta Sims. 
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
 

III.    CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Revised Personnel Pay Scale  
 
Mr. Fry stated that Ms. Vickie Hinman was handing out some personnel information and proposed revised pay 
scale. 
 
Mrs. Hinman reviewed the three handouts she provided: 

 2012 Archer Pay Plan Update 

 2012/2015 Pay Table Comparison showing % differences 

 Revised Archer Pay Table with adjustments for Directors and Deputy Director’s pay: 
Mrs. Hinman noted the City has closed the gap for hourly employees through recent COLA increases.   Mrs. 
Hinman stated that the revised pay plan was brought up to date to include the 2013 step increases, 2014 - 3% 
COLA,  2015 -  1½% COLA, and all merit increases given since the 2012 pay plan was presented.  Mrs. Hinman 
noted that the pay table comparison shows the City is below market average approximately 3% starting at 
Grade 2 and increasing to 31% at Grade 38.  Mrs. Hinman stated that every employee will receive some level of 
an increase. 
 
Ms. Kichler stated the table includes all employees adjusted for the increases and adjustments included for 
Directors and Deputy Directors to meet average salary rates. 
 
Mrs. Hinman noted she was using the average salaries for the pay plan.  Mr. Scott stated that he did not feel like 
we could compete with some of the municipalities with higher salaries but should work with the average.  
Discussion continued that the cost to implement the proposed pay plan would be $208,000 including all benefits. 
 
Mr. Lake stated that consideration needs to be given to future personnel cost as well as the cost of attrition.  Mr. 
Lake discussed the cost to train public safety officers and fireman and the issue in previous years of attrition in 
public safety.  Discussion continued that this was why the Public Safety Pay Plan was established in 2007 
independent of the Archer Pay Plan.  Mrs. Hinman stated that the employees on the Public Safety pay plan (not 
including the Chief) are currently 16% above other surrounding municipality’s salaries. 
 
Battalion Chief Joey Holasz stated that when the Public Safety pay plan was implemented the Battalion Chiefs 
took a decrease.  Mr. Holasz stated that there are now Lieutenants that making  $2/hour more and a 5 year 
Lieutenant is making significantly more.  Mrs. Hinman stated this is correct that when the Fire Department went 
with the Public Safety pay plan the Battalion Chief’s grade was decreased and according to the salary 
comparisons the Battalion Chiefs and the Chiefs are the only ones on that pay plan that show below the 
average.  Discussion continued that this position needed to be evaluated and adjusted.  Mr. Fry stated the 
Battalion Chief position should be looked at in the FY2016 Budget to allow time to gather comparison salaries. 

77



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

 

The Mayor proposed a $.30/hour increase across the board to address immediate concerns.  Discussion 

continued that the current annual budget included  $150,000 COLA and $30,000 Merit increase for personnel. 
 
Mrs. Conaway discussed the proposed pay plan and asked the Mayor about available monies.  Mayor Haygood 
addressed the City reaching a danger zone of personnel cost over 60% of budget.  The Mayor discussed 
phasing in the increased cost.    Discussion continued on the budgeting of the increase. 
 
Mr. LeJeune expressed his concerns on implementing a blanket increase process and that increases should not 
be evaluated as a whole.  Discussion continued on previous and current ordinances in place setting procedures 
on new hire pay and internal promotion increases.  Mrs. Hilburn stated that there were two department head‘s 
starting pay that was restricted below what a new hire could have been hired in as because of a previous 
ordinance.  Discussion continued that Mayor Haygood has since corrected that through adoption of an amended 
ordinance but these two employees pay is still below what a new hire is eligible for.  Mr. LeJeune stated he 
would like for these personnel ordinances to be reviewed by the Ordinance Committee. 
 
Mr. Rudicell discussed implementing 50%  of the increase for non-Directors/Deputy Directors this fiscal year  
and the remaining 50% next fiscal year but implement 100% for all other employees this fiscal year. 
 
Mr. Scott recommended appropriating one-half of the increase for the new pay plan effective the first pay period 
of August  ($17,341 for two months in FY15) and the second half on the first pay period of August 2016 (FY16: 
10 months at ½ implementation + 2 full months cost = $121,384).  Mayor Haygood asked if this would be in lieu 
of a COLA or would the COLA be in addition?  Discussion continued that budget numbers would have to be 
looked at to see if a COLA would fit into the FY16 budget.  Mrs. Kichler noted there might need to be a 
consideration of a COLA for the employees on the Public Safety pay plan that are not included in this plan.  Mr. 
Johnson discussed the inequities between what the department heads are receiving and the rank and file 
employees.  Discussion continued that the plan was to get all salaries in line with the average salaries of 
comparable municipalities and Archer’s recommendation.  Mr. Scott stated this is not a substitution for COLA 
but a two-step approach to get everyone up to the level recommended then continued COLAs to maintain. 
 
Mr. Fry discussed the City needs to keep good personnel and go with the recommended proposed pay plan to 
make this pay adjustment.  Mr. Fry noted no proposal will be perfect but we Mr. Fry noted we need to include 
the Finance Director’s pay for CPA certification and adjust the Treasurer’s pay to $5,000 to bring that position’s 
salary in line with the new pay plan. 

 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to: 

1)  Amend Ordinance 2015-  to include the Finance Director’s CPA Certification 
pay-$12,000 and a portion of the Treasurer’s pay $7,000 (adjusting the Treasure’s 

pay supplement to $5,000) in the new pay plan, and 
2)  Appropriate one-half of the increase for the new pay plan effective the first pay 

period of August, $17,341/  and the second half on the first pay period of 
August 2016 (FY16-$121,384)  from the General Fund.  Seconded by Mr. Pat 
Rudicell.  (Randy Fry – Aye / Mrs. Conaway – Aye / Robin LeJeune – Aye / John Lake – Nay).  Motion 
carried. 

 

 
VI. ADJOURN    
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m.  
 
 
 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



 

 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, June 15, 2015 

City Hall Executive Conference Room 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman    Councilwoman Tommie Conway 

Councilman Randy Fry     Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Pat Rudicell     Councilman Joe Davis 

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 The chairman declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present:  Ron Scott; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Joe 

Davis. 

 

Absent:   Pat Rudicell. 

 

Also Present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk / recording secretary; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; Matt Creel, Code Enforcement Officer; Mr. Mel Balch and Pat Daugherty with the 

Press-Register. 

 

II. APPROVE MINUTES / May 26, 2015 

There were no corrections to the May 26, 2015 minutes and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

IV. ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

a.) Discuss:  Regulate the Distribution of Handbills Ordinance 

Mr. Pat Daugherty, Press-Register, said they want to work with the city anyway possible to solve 

this issue.  They prefer to reach an agreement without an ordinance.  They are willing to offer to 

Daphne to conduct a weekly sweep on Friday sending people out to retrieve any papers at 

addresses where people do not pick up the papers.  They already do this for Fairhope and Foley.  

Again, they desire not to have an ordinance, and be given the opportunity to solve the problem 

and work together.   

 

Consensus of the committee is to wait and see how the seep program works before implementing 

an ordinance.  

92



 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE                                      June 15, 2015 Page 2 

 

  

 

V. ANY OTHER BUSINESS DEEMED NECESSARY 

The committee discussed amending the community contribution ordinance where they will have 

the opportunity to pick one group out of the participants, and give a one-time extension per year. 

Consideration for amending the ordinance is the result of a request from Thomas Hospital for 

$50,000 for five years for a Birthing Center. The committee discussed ways to fund the Thomas 

Hospital project.  

 

VI. NEXT MEETING /  July 20, 2015 

 

VII. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 6:20 P.M. 

 

 

 

93



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

June 24, 2015 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
Members Present: Casey Zito, Dorothy Morrison, Ken Balme, Debbie Strahley, 
Dayna Oldham 
 
Also Present: Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Melissa Wilt (Recording 
Secretary); Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Leah Washington; Nicole Sims 
 
Chairman Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. 
 
1. Public Participation 
 
Daphne residents Nicole Sims and Leah Washington proposed the Back to School 
Bash at Lott Park on Saturday, August 22nd, 2015. The Bash would include local 
food vendors, bounce houses and a movie, Big Hero 6, for families to enjoy and 
celebrate the start of the school year. It would also be an opportunity for Olde 
Towne Daphne to remain open that evening to promote products. Mini-Grant 
Application completed for consideration. 
 

Motion: to allocate funding and approve sponsoring the Back to School Bash 
Movie pending approval from City Attorney for $1,500.00.  Moved by Dorothy 
Morrison, Second by Debbie Strahley.   

Carried unanimously. 

 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Motion: to approve the minutes from the May 27, 2015 meeting as written.  
Moved by Dayna Oldham, Second by Dorothy Morrison.   

Carried unanimously. 

 
3. Treasurer’s Report 
 
Chairman Zito reviewed the Treasurer’s report, stating DRA funds currently 
stood at $157,206.20 and noted that this amount included the $3,150.00 
payment to Daphne Art Center for TV commercial spots for the Old Towne 
Daphne Farm and Art Faire.   
 

Motion: to approve the June 24, 2015 Treasurer’s Report as written.  Moved by 
Dorothy Morrison, Second by Dayna Oldham.   

Carried unanimously. 

 

94



4. Discussion 
 

Chairman Zito asked Ken Balme if he felt the advertising increased participation 
for the farm and art faire. Mr. Balme said yes, they believe the event had more 
attendees this year and people commented on seeing the ad. Chairman Zito 
recommended the faire be moved to an earlier date prior to school being out for 
the summer.  

  
5. Bicycle Racks 
 
Chairman Zito reported that the bicycle racks had been installed in several 
locations and noted Public Works pouring concrete at Sculpture Park entrance. 
Requested committee holds an unveiling celebration of the bicycle racks to help 
promote them. She mentioned aiming for the beginning of August and for Debbie 
Strahley to contact the local bicycle groups to gauge participation.  
 
6. Pine Grove Mini Grant Application 
 
The committee reviewed a mini-grant application submitted by Joe Bullard. The 
application requests DRA contribute funds to remove the old roof and provide a 
new roof for the Pine Grove Lodge building. Application states the building will 
be available for community use and hopes to preserve the historic building. 
Committee requests Mr. Bullard be present or available via phone conference to 
discuss application further at the next meeting prior to voting.  
  
7. Other Business Deemed Necessary 
 
Website: Chairman Zito noted website should be available for review any day 
now - still need bios from some committee members.  
 
Constant Contact: Chairman Zito requested follow up on Constant Contact 
training seminar that had been discussed for downtown businesses.  
 
American Flags: Dorothy Morrison asked if committee supported purchasing 
additional American Flags for the downtown area. Committee agreed this would 
be a great touch. Ms. Morrison will discuss with Beautification Committee.  
 
With no other business to consider, the meeting was adjourned at 
7:00 p.m. Moved by Dayna Oldham, seconded by Dorothy Morrison.  
Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Next Meeting: July 22nd at 5:30 pm. 

95



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JUNE 22, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Denis Kearney, III; Pokey Miller; John Cox; Doug Bailey.  

 

Absent:  Jeffrey Ramsland, Dan Romanchuk. 

 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilman Joe Davis, Council Liaison; Lee Johnson, 

BCEDA; Heiko Einfeld, Executive Director for ES Chamber of Commerce. 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / March 30, 2015  

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to approve the March 30, 2015 meeting minutes as written.  Seconded by 

Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

4.   TREASURER’S REPORT 

Cash Balance March 30, 2015: $408,519.21 

  

Deposits  

Interest: $132.59 

Hotel Tax: $11,979.89 

  

Less  

Debit for Harlan Clark: $12.81 

  

Cash Balance April 30, 2015: $420,618.88 

  

Receivable Check #00169657:                   $14,657.82 

Receivable Check #00170154                                      $13,155.49       

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to accept the Treasurer’s report as presented.  Seconded by John Cox. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JUNE 22, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 2 of 2 

 

 

5.   OLD BUSINESS 

      1.)  Discuss DISC Project 

Toni reported that since the presentation before council they have received a lot of interest in the project.  

There were articles in the paper, and spots on TV regarding the project.  They have received a letter of support 

from SARPC and a letter of intent from a developer.  Doug represented the project at the Site Review meeting 

last Wednesday and will also be there for the Planning Commission meeting on Thursday. There has been a 

grant submitted for the infrastructure for the project.               

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS   

No new business. 

 

7.   REPORT FROM BALDWIN COUNTY ECONOMIC ALLIANCE 

Lee Johnson reported on the Paris Air Show, and some of the interest in businesses wanting to come to 

Baldwin County.   

 

8.   OTHER BUSINESS 

Heiko Einfeld reported that the chamber is working on the Jubilee Festival and the Fairhope Arts and Craft 

Festival and they have made some exciting additions to both festivals. 

 

9.   NEXT MEETING        

The next meeting will be April 27, 2015 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to adjourn.  Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The board adjourned at 7:08 p.m. 

 

 

 

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
May 13, 2015 

 
 

Members Present:   Matt Cunningham, David Dueitt, Frank Pierce and Kit Smith 
 
Advisory Staff:   Councilman Robin LeJeune, David McKelroy and Charlie McDavid 
 
Guest:   Tim Patton (Volkert) and Victoria Phelps (Lake Forest Property Owners Association) 
 
Members Absent:   Rick Cleveland, Lisa O’Hara, Lawrence Yelding and Glenn Vickery 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:35pm. 
 
Review and approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Kit Smith and seconded by Frank Pierce to approve the March 11, 2015 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Public Participation 
Victoria Phelps with the LFPOA spoke briefly about the lease of the Lake Forest “Lake Nine” to 
the City of Daphne. 
 
Old / New Business 
 
 Update – New Facilities     Tim Patton with Volkert, Inc updated the board about the 
 proposed new facilities.  The Master Plan, timelines and the formation of the Parks 
 Planning Team were discussed.  Should council decide to include Recreation Board 
 members on the PPT, Matt Cunningham and David Dueitt volunteered and were 
 approved by the Recreation Board to serve on the PPT (motion was made by Kit Smith 
 and seconded by Frank Pierce).  
 
 
Comments by Director 
 
The Director commented on the following: 
 

   The consideration of Non Resident Fees on registration for athletics. 

   Activities at the Lake Forest “Lake Nine” 
1.  Walking Trails with Fitness Stations 
2. Disc Golf 
3. Foot Golf ? 

161



   The announcement of Jane Ellis as new Senior Coordinator 
 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40pm. 
 

162



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
June 10, 2015 

 
 

Members Present:   Rick Cleveland, David Dueitt, Lisa O’Hara, Glenn Vickery 
 
Advisory Staff:   David McKelroy 
 
Guest:   Victoria Phelps and Dorothy Morris 
 
Members Absent:   Matt Cunningham, Frank Pierce, Kit Smith and Lawrence Yelding 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:33pm. 
 
Review and approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by David Dueitt and seconded by Lisa O’Hara to approve the May 13, 2015 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Old / New Business 
 
 Update New Facilities     The Part Planning Team meeting scheduled for June 18, 2015 
 was discussed.  It was discussed that the Daphne Recreation Board’s recommendations 
 and priorities for new facilities could be changed by the PPT and the Council. 
 
 Lake Forest Property / Disc Golf     Discussion was held about having Disc Golf at the 
 Lake Forest Park (Lake Nine) property.  Recommendation was made by Rick Cleveland 
 and seconded by David Dueitt and passed that Disc Golf be located on this property. 
 
 Dog Park     New benches at the Dog Park was discussed.  Previous benches built by a   
 Boys Scout years ago were no longer usable.    
 
Comments 
 Rick Cleveland talked about the need for more care of facilities at Daphne schools being 
 used by recreation programs. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:35pm. 
 
 

163



164



165



166



RESOLUTION 2015 - 43 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DAPHNE CITY COUNCIL REQUESTING THE 

EASTERN SHORE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION FUND A 

PROJECT TO CONSTRUCT A TRANSIT FACILITY IN DAPHNE FOR WHICH THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE WILL PROVIDE THE 20% LOCAL MATCH  
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne (“City”) is a member of the Eastern Shore Metropolitan 

Planning Organization (MPO), and 

 

WHEREAS, federal funding is available through the MPO for transit projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, federal law requires a twenty percent (20%) local match for projects 

utilizing said federal funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, City desires to construct a transit boarding and de-boarding facility 

(hereinafter “Project”) to aid existing and future transit operations within Daphne and on the 

Eastern Shore; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the estimated total Project cost is between $200,000 and $300,000; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the estimated local match for the Project is between $40,000 and $60,000; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, the MPO requires a resolution from a sponsoring local government 

committing the sponsoring government to providing the 20% local match for project funds; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA to request the Eastern Shore Metropolitan Planning 

Organization fund the Daphne transit facility and that we commit to providing the local match 

for said project amounting to 20% of the total project cost.  

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the _____the day of ___________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                              ___________________________           

           Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk   

 

167



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION 2015 - 44 

 

Acceptance of Streets and/or Rights of Way 

A portion of Ray’s Lane 

Southwest of Bradbury Circle, South of Lake Forest Subdivision 

                                    

Whereas, Idell Jones hereby desires to grant, bargain, convey, and/or donate to the City 

of Daphne a certain portion of the right-of-way of Ray’s Lane to the City of Daphne; and,  

 

 Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and 

has recommended acceptance of said right-of-way;  

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the 

Planning Commission of the City of Daphne in its regularly scheduled meeting of June 25, 2015 

reviewed the proposal and made a favorable recommendation for the acceptance of the same; 

and, 

 

 Whereas, said right-of-way is located within the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Baldwin County, Alabama and is described as follows: 

 
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 154, UNIT 10, LAKE FOREST 

SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 7, PAGE 105; SAID CORNER BEING ON THE 

WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID UNIT 10, THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°-15'-00” WEST 317.51 

FEET ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF UNIT 10 TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 89°-45'-00" WEST 60.0 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°-15'-00” EAST 

317.51 FEET TO A CAPPED STEEL ROD; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°-45'-00” EAST 60.0 FEET 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.44 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

  

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the best interest of the 

citizens of the City for the City to accept said right-of-way; and, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, that the below described right-of-way, a portion of 

Ray’s Lane is hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a city street for maintenance: 

   

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ________ DAY OF 

_____________________, 2015. 
 

 THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

   AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION         

                                                                  

            

 

   ________________________________ 

    DANE HAYGOOD 

    MAYOR    

                                                    

          

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

REBECCA HAYES, CITY CLERK 

168



169



170



171



172



173



174



ORDINANCE 2015-33 
DAPHNE RECREATIONAL FACILITIES: MASTER PLANNING & PRE-

DESIGN APPRORIATION 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-48 sets forth an allocation of Lodging Tax proceeds 
that may be used for certain recreational grounds capital items; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Daphne Facilities project meets such recreational grounds capital 
criteria; and  
 
WHEREAS, Engineers have been selected by Council to provide services and 
oversee the following segments of the project: 

 Project Program Manager - Volkert & Associates 

 Grass Athletic Consultant - Lose & Associates (HMR) 

 Tennis Courts – Hatch Mott McDonald 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include 
an appropriation from the Lodging Tax Fund for the Master Planning and Pre-
Design Daphne of the Recreational Facilities in the amount of $168,100.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
             

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



 ORDINANCE NO. 2015-34 
 
An Ordinance Setting Forth the Authorization of Certain City Officials as 
Designated Signatories on Various Accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The following Officers of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be and hereby are 
officially designated as the appropriate and authorized signatories on the various City 
accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama: 
 
    Mayor    Dane Haygood 
    Finance Director   Kelli Kichler 
    Councilmember   John L. Lake 
    Councilmember    Pat Rudicell 
     
 
SECTION 2:  All checks, drafts, and all other financial transfers shall be signed by two (2) 
of the above-designated signatories. 
 
SECTION 3:  Any ordinance or resolution previously adopted which in any way conflicts 
with this Ordinance is hereby deemed repealed in its entirety with the exclusion of 
Resolution 2013-37 which prescribes signatories for the Confiscated Funds account. 
 
SECTION 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any part of this 
Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
declaration shall not affect the remaining parts. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
THIS _______day of _______________, 2015. 
 
        
 
 
       ____________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________                             
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

188



ORDINANCE 2015-35 
 

Lake Forest – Lot 62-Sub Unit 25 Property Purchase  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, several properties have had drainage issues with the last occurrence being 
during the 16.5" rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, 
safety, and convenience of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, this purchase is NOT eligible for FEMA reimbursement; and 
  
WHEREAS, the cost to purchase the property is $7,500.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby 
amended to include an appropriation in the amount of $7,500 from the General Fund for 
purchase of the Lake Forest, Lot 62, Sub Unit 25 (PPIN:017540). 
    
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

189



ORDINANCE 2015-36 
 

An Ordinance Amending the City of Daphne Pay Plan and Appropriation of funds  
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded approved personnel positions for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Archer Company prepared a comparison salary survey in 2012 and 
recommended a percentage based increase for all positions but due to the economic 
conditions at that time the budget did not allow those personnel increases to be 
implemented; and 
 
WHEREAS,  recent evaluations of the current pay plan have shown that City salaries are 
not in line with current market salary rates; and  
 
WHEREAS, a proposed new pay plan has been created with the 2012 salary survey as 
the basis and adjustments made to stay in line with surrounding municipalities pay scale 
for Directors; and 
 
WHEREAS,  updates to the pay plan also include all COLA, merit, and step increases that 
have been given to City personnel since the 2012  survey was prepared; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review, the City Council recommends that the proposed Pay Plan 
as attached be implemented. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
 

1) Amend Ordinance 2015-09 and 2015-27  to include the Finance Director’s CPA 
Certification pay-$12,000 and a portion of the Treasurer’s pay $7,000 (adjusting the 
Treasure’s pay supplement to $5,000) in the new pay plan, and 

2)  Appropriate from the General Fund one-half of the increase for the new pay plan 
effective the first pay period of August, $17,341  and the second half on the first pay 
period of August 2016 (FY16-$121,384).    

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2015. 
  
     
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

190



191



192



193



194



PULLED FROM THE AGENDA PER OWNER AT THE JULY 6, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-37 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

One Quarter Mile South of the Intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road 

Cadence Bank 

 

 WHEREAS, Cadence Bank as the owner of certain real property located within the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned from R-4, High Density Multi-

Family Residential District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is located one quarter mile south of the intersection of 

County Road 64 and Pollard Road, and more particularly described as follows:  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR 6.19 ACRES 

 

BEGINNING AT A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675) AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER 

OT LOT 1 OF BOLAR VIEW SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN BY MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, 

RECORDED AT SLIDE 1532-A, PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA 

AND RUN THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE 

EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF POLLARD ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 328.91 FEET TO A 2 INCH 

CRIMP TOP IRON PIPE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 56 SECONDS 

EAST, A DISTANCE OF 163.13 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 107.87 FEET 

TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 08 

MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 200.79 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED 

REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A 

DISTANCE OF 119.64 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 88 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST,A DISTANCE OF 251.28 FEET TO A 

1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-0756-LS); THENCE RUN NORTH 01 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 

21 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 619.00 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-

007-LS); THENCE RUN NORTH 61 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST, A 

DISTANCE OF 69.56 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 46 

MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 253.23 FEET TO 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR 

(CA-0951-LS); THENCE RUN SOUTH 36 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, A 

DISTANCE OF 22.95 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-0393-LS); THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 63 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 167.13 FEET TO A 

1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 

18 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

 

LESS AND ACCEPT LOTS 1-3 OF BOLAR VIEW SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 

1532A IN THE PROBATE RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

TRACT CONTAINS 6.19 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LIES IN SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 5 

SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on April 23, 2015 the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a unanimous favorable recommendation to the 

City Council of the City of Daphne that said property be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed rezoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a 

public hearing was held before the City Council on July 6, 2015; and, 

195



  
 

 
ORDINANCE 2015-37                             REZONE: CADENCE BANK  PROPERTY                         PAGE   2 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and the public hearing deemed 

that said application for rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best 

interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-4, High Density Multi-Family 

Residential District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, and that the zoning ordinance and 

zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.  

 

SECTION III: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in 

so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, 

or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of                         , 2015. 

 

 

 

         

       _____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 

                                    

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

196



197



198



PULLED FROM THE AGENDA PER OWNER AT THE JULY 6, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-38  

   

Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located  

One Quarter Mile South of the Intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road 

Cadence Bank 

 
 WHEREAS, Cadence Bank as the owner of certain real property located within the 

unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from 

RSF-2, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to PUD, Planned Unit 

Development District, City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is one quarter mile south of the intersection of County Road 64 

and Pollard Road, and more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description for Pre-zone: 

 

LOTS 1-3 OF BOLAR VIEW SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1532A IN 

THE PROBATE RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

WHEREAS, at the regular Planning Commission meeting on April 23, 2015, the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a unanimous favorable recommendation; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on July 6, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-

zoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from RSF-2, Single Family 

Residential District, Baldwin County District 15, to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, City 

of Daphne, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning 

change. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

 
ORDINANCE 2015-38                           PRE-ZONE CADENCE BANK PROPERTY                       PAGE   2 
 

199



 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each 

other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant 

to Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective 

upon the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is 

not annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings 

as provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                    , 2015.       

                        

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

200



201



202



203



204



PULLED FROM THE AGENDA PER OWNER AT THE JULY 6, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

ORDINANCE 2015-39  

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the Intersection of County Road 64 and 

Pollard Road 

Cadence Bank 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 26

th
 day of March, 2015, being the owner of all real property hereinafter 

described, did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed 

into and become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on July 6, 2015 

concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

regular scheduled meeting on April 23, 2015, and the Commission set forth a unanimous favorable 

recommendation for the City Council of the City of Daphne to consider said request for annexation and 

said property; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 
 
 

205



 
ORDINANCE 2015-39                                         ANNEXATION  / CADENCE BANK                                     PAGE   2 

 
 

Legal Description for Annexation: 

 

LOTS 1-3 OF BOLAR VIEW SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 

1532A IN THE PROBATE RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA. 

  

 

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit 

“A” and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ________ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

206



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description for Annexation: 

LOTS 1-3 OF BOLAR VIEW SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1532A IN THE 

PROBATE RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

207



 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR VILLAS AT ST. CHARLES VILLAGE PUD 
 

BEGINNING AT A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675) AT THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OT LOT 1 OF BOLAR VIEW SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN BY MAP OR PLAT 

THEREOF, RECORDED AT SLIDE 1532-A, PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA AND RUN THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 08 SECONDS WEST, 

ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF POLLARD ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 328.91 

FEET TO A 2 INCH CRIMP TOP IRON PIPE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88 DEGREES 58 

MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 163.13 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED 

REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 24 SECONDS 

WEST, A DISTANCE OF 107.87 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675); 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 

200.79 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 45 

MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 119.64 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED 

REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE RUN SOUTH 88 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 30 SECONDS 

EAST,A DISTANCE OF 251.28 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-0756-LS); 

THENCE RUN NORTH 01 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 

619.00 FEET TO A 5/8 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-007-LS); THENCE RUN NORTH 61 

DEGREES 24 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 69.56 FEET TO A 1/2 

INCH REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, A 

DISTANCE OF 253.23 FEET TO 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-0951-LS); THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 36 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 22.95 FEET TO 

A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (CA-0393-LS); 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 63 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 

167.13 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR (LS #10675); THENCE RUN NORTH 88 

DEGREES 43 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.49 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 7.27 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LIES IN 

SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 
 

 

208


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Public Hearing Info
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	Buildings & Property Minutes June 1 2015
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	DRA Minutes
	IDB Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Public Hearing Set Date Info
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES--5-13-15
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES--6-10-15
	Utility Minutes
	2015-43 - RES - Transit Hub - MPO
	2015-44 - RES - Rayslane Street Acceptance
	Backup to 2015-44 - RES
	2015-33 - ORD - Lodging Tax-Daphne Recreational Facilites-Master PlanningPre-Design
	Backup to 2015-33 - ORD
	2015-34 - ORD - Signature Authority-2015
	2015-35 - ORD - Lake Forest Property-Lot 62-Sub Unit 25
	2015-36 - ORD - Pay Table Update
	Backup to 2015-36 - ORD
	2015-37 - REZONE - II CADENCE BANK
	Backup to 2015-37 - ORD - Rezone Cadence Bank
	2015-38 - ORD - PRE-ZONE - CADENCE BANK
	Backup to 2015-38 - ORD -  Pre-Zone Cadence Bank
	2015-39 - ANNEXATION - CADENCE BANK
	Backup to 2015-39 - #1  - ORD -  EXHIBIT A - LEGAL - CADENCE BANK
	Backup to 2015-39 - #2 - ORD -  LEGAL FOR PUD - CADENCE BANK 



